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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Chicago Board of Trade developed 1In response to the
instability and chaos that existed in the Chicago grain market
in the 1840's. Since then, it has become, says urban historian
Carl W. Condit, "the central grain exchange of the United States.”
Moreover, according to distinguished scholars Julius B. Baer and
Clin G. Saxon, it is "the largest and most important commodity
exchange in the world."

After its establishment in 1848, the Board not only brought
a semblance of order to the c¢ity's grain trade, but it piloneered
in the development of the modern commodity market when it began
to allow the use of "to arrive" contracts, whereby individuals
purchased grain before 1t was actually dellvered. By the end of
the Civil War, "futures" contracts had evolved from this process.
Individuals, seeking to minimize thelr risks by "hedging" or make
profits by "speculating," bought and sold commodities many mecnths
in advance of actual delivery. "Futures" trading, say Baer and
Saxon, was "an American development which originated . « o 1in
grain trading on the Chicago Board of Trade."

During the post-Civil War era, the Board of Trade increased
both in size of membership and scope of operations, as it added
new commodities to its trading lists. Because its price levels
became accepted as the national standard of value, the Board came
under criticism from agrarian groups who blamed it and "futures"
trading for low farm prices. Although successful in marshaling
its forces to defeat an outright ban on "futures" transactions, the
Board proved unable to prevent the passage of the Graln Futures Act
in 1922 which placed it and similar exchanges under Federal
regulation.

(continued)

lcharles W. Condit, Chicago, 1910-29: Bulilding, Planning, and
Urban Technology (Chicago, 1973), 130; Julius B. Baer and Olin G,
Saxon, Commodity Exchanges and Futures Trading: Principles and
Operating Methods (New York, 1949}, 10

2 , _
.Baer and Saxon, Commodity Exchanges and Futures Trading, 11.
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Today, the Board, as i1t has for the past 129 years, provides
a central trading facility for its members, who now number 1,402.
In addition to grains, the Board now deals in soybeans and related
products, lumber, precious metals, and interest note futures.

This 45-story edifice was designed by the distingulshed
architectural firm of Holabird and Root, and its pyramidal roof
i1s .crowned appropriately with zn aluminum statue of Ceres, the
Roman goddess of grain and harvest. - Located at 141 West Jackson
Boulevard, this skyscraper, which was planned during the mid-1920's
and begun in 1929, occuples the site of an earlier Board of Trade
puilding in use from 1885 to 1928. None of the other 10 structures
that have headquartered the Board since, 1848 are extant.

History

The Chicago Board of Trade was, according to Baer and Saxon,
the "first genuine commodity exchange."3 It developed as a resp-
onse to the instablility and chaos that existed in that city's
grain markets in the 1840's. Because of Chicago's location on
the western rim of the wheat growing area and northeastern edge
of the corn belt and because of its rail and water transportation
facilities, it developed into a natural grain market. As a result,
says historian Edward J. Dies, "the stream of grain that poured into
Chicago bulged the sides of the little town and made necessary
almost constant expansion of marketing and storage f‘acilities."j4
Individual efforts to accomodate this trade proved largely in-
effectual due to 1its increasing size and often resulted in the
spoilage of huge quantities of grain. Another problem was price
instability. During the harvest season, markets became glutted
and prices tumbled while at other times of the year grain prices
rose astronomically. Also, the lack of standard welghts and measures

resulted in increasingly acrimonious disputes between buyers and

sellers.

In 1848, W. L. Whiting, a grain broker, and Thomas Richmond,
owner of several grain elevators, took the initial step in dealing
with these problems when they invited Chicago's businessm:3n to

(continued)

3Tp1d., 130.

4
Edward J. Dies, The Wheat Pit (Chicago, 1925), 1ll.
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meet with them in Whiting's office on March 13 to formulate some
plan of action. At this gathering, attended by 82 merchants
representing every important business interest in the clty, the
Chicago Board of Trade was born. This meeting also elected Thomas
Dyer, a future Chicago mayor, as the Board's first president and
adopted a constitution, whose preamble clearly stated the organ-
ization's purposes:

“"Po maintain a commercial exchange; to promote uniformity

in the customs and usages of merchants; to inculcate
principles of justice and equity to trade; to facilitate

the speedy adjustment of business disputes; to acquire

and disseminate valuable commercial and economic informatlion;
and generally to secure to 1its members the benefits of
cooperation in the furtherance of their legitimate pursuits.“5

In April 1848, the Board (formally incorporated in 1850 as
the Board of Trade of the City of Chicago) held its first regular
meeting, adopted a set of standards for grading grain, and appointed
inspectors to enforce them. Because of the unreliability of the
measured bushel, the Board in 1854 decreed the standard bushel
of wheat to be 60 pounds and oats 32 pounds. In 1ts early years,
the Board had some difficulty in enforcing its decrees, but in
1859, the Illinois Legislature amended its charter to give the
Board the legal authority of a minor court in dealing with 1its
members' business transactions.

In its early vears of operation, the Board of Trade differed
1ittle from the commodity markets of antiquity except for the
unprecedented size of the transactions on its exchange. Most
grain sales were for cash and immediate delivery. Soon, however,
to arrive" contracts came into use whereby individuals purchased
grain before it was actually delivered. This practice was a
forerunner of "futures" contracts whereby individuals, seeking
to minimize risks by "hedging" or hoping to profilt by "speculating,”
purchase and sell commodities many months in advance of actual
delivery. Scholars disagree as to the exact date when "futures"
trading started at the Chicago Board of Trade, but all agree with
the distinguished economic historlan Edward C. Kirkland that it

(continued)

5cited in Commission on Chicapo Historical and Architectural
Landmarks, Chicago Board of Trade Bullding (Chicago, 1975), 3.

¢ . GPO BY2 455



7 \0.300

Wb

o 14 . i
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTERED

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED

CONTINUATION SHEET Chicago Board ITEMNUMBER 8  PAGE three

"developed rapildly in the course of the Civil War, and in 1865 thg
rules of the Board of Trade offlcially recognlzed 1ts existence."
At any rate this feature, says Baer and Saxon, marked the emergence
of the modern commodity exchange, "an American development which
originated . . . in grain trading on the Chicago Board of Trade. "’

In the postwar era, the Board expanded the scope of 1ts
operations to include flour, pork, beef, lard, butter, and lumber
as well as grain, and its price levels became the national standard
of value. "Its growth in membership from the original 82 to 1,903
in 1892 and its numerous committees, ranging from flaxseed inspe-
cetion to transportation and meteorology," says Chicago historian
Bessie L. _Pierce, "attested to its extensive influence and use-
fulness.™ )

The Board of Trade's increasing power, however, made 1t a
target for agrarian groups who blamed 1t and "futures" trading for
low farm prices. In the 1890's, much support was evidenced 1n
the U.S. Ccngress for legislation to ban dealing in "futures.".
Although an outrizht ban was narrowly defeated, thanks to effective
lobbying by the Beard, farm groups increasingly began to demand
governmental regulaticn of commodity exchanges. With the passage
of the Grain Futures Act in 1922, the Chicago Board of Trade as
well as other commodity markets dealing in grain came under Federal
regulation.

Today, the Board of Trade, as it has for the past 129 years,
provides a central trading facility for its members, who now number
1,402. 1In 1973 the Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) was
established to deal in stock options. In addlition to the tradit-
ional wheat, corn, and oats, the Board now deals 1in soybeans,
soybean meal, soybean oll, iced brollers, plywood, stud lumber,
silver, gold, and Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA
or Ginnie Mae) interest notes. In 1974, some 14.5 million contracsts
were traded, of which 90 percent were of the "futures" varlety
and the remainder were cash grain sales.

6Edward C. Kirkland, A History of American Economic Life,
4th ed. (New York, 1967), 393.

TBaer and Saxon, Commodity Exchanges and Futures Trading, 11.

8Bessile L. Pierce, A History of Chicago: The Rise of a Modern
City, 1871-1893, Vol. III (New York, 1957), 79.
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This 45-story edifice was designed by the distinguilshed
architectural firm of Holabird and Root, and its pyramidal roof
is crowned appropriately with an aluminum statue of Ceres, the
Roman goddess of grailn and harvest. Located at 141 West Jackson
_Boulevard, thils skyscraper, which was planned during the mid-1920's
and begun in 1925, occcunies the site of an earlier Board of Trade
buillding in use from 1895 to 1928, None of the other 10 structures
that have headquartered the Board since 1848 are extant.

When the Chicago Board of Trade was organized in 1848, it
was located in a few rooms over Gage and Halnes's flour store on
South Water Street. During its early years, the Board seemed
constantly on the move in a search for more floor space for its
rapidly expanding operations. In 1852 the Board relocated in a
building on the corner of Clark and South Water Streets: in 1853 on
8 Dearborn Street; in 1854 on the corner of Wells and South Water
Streets; in 135¢€ on the corner of South Wdter and LaSalle Streets;
and in 1860 on South Water between Wells and LaSalle Streets. 1In
1865 the Board moved to its first really permanent home in the
Chamber of Commerce Building located at the southwest corner of
LaSalle and Washington Streets. In 1871, the Chicago fire des-
troyed this structure, and for several months, the Board conducted
business in a 90-foot-square wigwam near the corner of Washington
and Market Streets. By the end of the year, however, the Chamber
of Commerce Building had been rebuilt, and the Board had returned
to its o0ld location.

In 1881 the Board decided to construct its own building,
purchased property at what is now 141 West Jackson Boulevard,
and hired W. W. Boyington, a leading Chicago architect, to design
a suitable edifice. Completed in 1885, this structure with its
mansard roof and 300-fcoot tower served as the Board's home for
over forty years. By the mid 1920's, however, 1t had become too
small for the Board's needs and increasingly uneconomical to operate,
and 1n 1927, the members voted to demolish it and construct a new
bullding designed by Holabird and Root on the sifte. While the
new edifice was under construction in 1928-30, the Board established
temporary headquarters in a building at 447-511 South Clark Street.

The Chicago Board of Trade Building, one of Holabird and
Root's first majJor projects, is a prime example of a new type of
skyscraper avchitecture which appeared in the late 1920's and
has been variously described as "Cubistic," Modernistic," "Art
Deco," "1920's Modern," and "Vertical style."9

(continued)

9Commissior on Chi
i cago Historical and Arch
Chicago Board of Trade Building, 10.-. itectural Landmarks,
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This northfacing, 45-story structure has a steel frame,and its
exterior is sheathed in grey Indiana limestone. It is capped
with a pyramid-shaped roof which is crowned with an aluminum
statue, "Ceres, Goddess of Grain and Harvest," by John H. Stoors,
a leading 1920's sculptor. At the rear half of the edifice’s
9-story base is a 36-story tower which 1s flanked on the front

by two projecting wings which rise 13 stories above the base,
thus creating a setback effect and emphasizing the bullding's
verticality.

With the exception of the 9-story base, the structure has

no external ornamentation. Windows are generally rectangular-
shaped and are of the one-over-one wooden sash variety. Windows
in the base are taller, and most have metal sashs and sidelights
and feature decorated slipsills. Above the windows on the front

" (north) facade of the base is .the inscription, "Chicago Board of
Trade." Next to 1t, on either side, are two highly stylized
cattle heads set in high relief. Directly above the inscriptlon
is a clock flanked by two hooded figures and capped with an eagle.
The figure on the left represents the Babylonians who historically
gave us wheat while the figure on the right 1s the American Indian
who gave us corn or malze. According to thelr sculptor Alvin
Meyer, these figures "symbolize the birth of wheat and corn" while
the eagle in the center is "emblematic of the spirit of America
guarding our agricultural interests."l0

In addition to the main entrance an Jackson Boulevard, the
building has a rear entrance adjacent to a parking ramp, and
entrances on LaSalle and Sherman Streets--all of which have
revolving doors. Inside, the structure features a three-story
Art Deco lobby sheathed in seven varleties of marble and multi-
colored translucent glass. Lighting fixtures are hidden behind
the glass and have nickel reflectors which,combined with the
richness of the marble, strongly suggest opulence. Fourteen
columns sheathed in marble and glass provide support in this
section. Stairways and railings 1n this area are of brass and
feature .a wheat motif. Below the lobby area is a four-level

(continued)

1OCited in Heolabird and Root to H. A. Rumsey, November 13, 19529,
in Chicago Board of Trade Archives, Chicago Board of Trade
Building, Chicago, 1lllircis.
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basement. Originally, the three lower levels housed mechanical
operations, and the upper level a restaurant. In recent years,
however, B-level, the o0ld boller room, has been completely re-
novated, and now serves as office space for the Board of Trade.

The 115-by-165-foot trading room is located on the fourth
floor at the front of the edifice. Originally six stories in
height, the room was reduced to three stories in 1974 when the
upper three floors were decked across to provide a trading floor
for the Chicago Board Options Exchange. On the floor of the
trading room, futures transactions are conducted on raised
octagonal platforms called "pits" while cash sales are transacted
at cash graln tables. Near the ceiling of this area the columns
of the 36-story tower rest on the top chords of six trusses,
each welghing 227 tons. According to architectural historian
Carl W. Conduit, "they are among the largest_ structural elements
of steel so far incorporated in a building."ll

In recent years, the Board has made extensive interior
renovations to the floors it occupiles, four through nine. The
executive offices, originally on the fifth floor, have been moved
to the sixth, and offices in this section thoroughly modernized.
Offices in the tower section, however, are virtually unaltered.
Hallways in this area have marble wainscotting, and feature
elevators Laving black doors and bearing brass plaques with a grain
motlif, Office doors arz of dark wood and have louvers. Today
the tuilding has approximately 750,000 feet of rentable floor
space, of which the Board itself uses 87,000,

1lcarl w. condit, Chicago, 1910-29, 130.
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